UNZITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF GEORGIA
ATLANTA DIVISION

FEDERAL: TRADE COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

)
)
)
)
)
. ) Civil No. 1:03-CV-2648-JIC
: )
'STEWART FINANCE COMPANY )
HOLDINGS, INC., STEWART )
FINANCE COMPANY, STEWART )
NATIONAL FINANCE COMPANY, INC., )
. STEWART FINANCE COMPANY OF )
LOUISIANA, INC., STEWART )
FINANCE COMPANY OF MISSOURI, )
INC., STEWART FINANCE COMPANY )
OF ILLINOIS, INC., STEWART )
PINANCE COMBANY OF TENNESSEE, )
INC., D & E ACQUISITIONS, INC., )
DREFERRED CHOICE AUTO CLUB, )
INC., STEWART INSURANCE, LTD., )
and J & J INSURANCE, LTD., )
corporations, and. )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

JOHN BEN STEWART, JR.,
individually and z= an officer
of the corporations,

Defendants.

TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER WITH A FREEZE OF NON-

DEBTOR DEFENDANTS’ ASSETS, EXPEDITED DISCOVERY, AND EQUITABLE

RELIEF AND ORDER FOR DEFENDANTS TO SHOW CAUSE WHY PRELIMINARY
INJUNCTION SHOULD NOT BE ENTERED "

Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”), has filed a
Complaint seeking a permanent injunction and other egquitable

relief, pursuant to Section 13 (b) of the Federal Trade Commission
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Acﬁ (YFTC Act”), 15 U.S.Cf §53 (b) ., and.Section 108 (c) of the
Truth in Lending Act (*TILA”), 15 U.S.C, § 1607(&), and Sectiop
621 (a) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act (“FCRA”), 15 U.S.C.

§ 1681sla), against defendants for engaging in unfair oxr
deceptive acts or practices in viclation of Section 5(a) (1) of

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a) (1), acts and practices in

violationn of the FTC’'s Trade Regulation Rule Concerning Credit

Practices (*Credit Practices Rule”), 16 C.F.R Part 444, acts or

practices in vioclation of the TILA, 15 U.5.C. 8§ 1601-16667, as

amended, and the TILA's implementing Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R.

§ 226, as aménded, and acts or practices in Violation of the'
FCRA, 15 U.S.C. § 1681-1681u, as amended. The FTC also filed a
motion for temporary restraining order with an asset freeze,
expédited discovery, and other equitable relief, and for an order
to show cause why a preliminary injunction should noﬁ be granﬁed
pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and
Ldéal Rule 65.1. This Court has considered the pleadings and
exhibits filed by the parties, and now being advised in the
premises, finds that:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject‘métter of
this case, there is good cause to believe iﬁ will have
jurisdiction over all the parties hereto, and venue in this
digtrict is proper; , . "

2. There is good cause to believe that Stewart Finance
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Cémpany Holdings, inc.; gtewart Finance Company, Inc. (“SFC”);
Stewarﬁ National Finance Company, Inc. (“SNFC”); Stewart Financé
Compan& of Louisiana, Inc. (“S¥PC LAY); Stéwa:t Finance Company of
Missouri, Inc. (“SFC MO"); Stewart Finance Company of Illinois,
Inc. (“8FC IL”); Stewart Finance Company of Tennessee, Inc.
(*SFC TN”); John Ben Stewart, Jr. (“Ben Stewaft"); D & E
Acquisitions, Inc. (D & E"); Preferred Choice Auto Club, Inc.
(“Preferred Choice Auto Club”); Stewart Insurance Ltd. (“Stewar;
Inéuranceﬁ); and J & J Insurance, Ltd. (*J & J Inéﬂrance”) have
engaged and are likeiy to continue to engage in acts or practices
.that violate Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.3.C. § 45(a);
Section 108(c) of the TILA, 15 U.S.C. § 1607(¢); the 'I'IiA, 15
U.8.C. 8§ 1601-16667, as amended; and the TILA's implehenting
Regulation Z, 12 C.F.R. 8 226,las amended, and that the FTC is
therefore likely to p:evail on the merits of thié action;

3. There is good cause to believe that immediate and
‘irreparable harm will result from defendants’ ongeing #iolations
of the FTC Act and the TILA unless defendants are restrained and
enjoined by order of this Court;

4. Weighing the equitiles and considexring the FTC's
1ikelihood of ultimate success and the possibility of asset
dissipation, a temporary restraining ordexr with a freeze of non-
debtcr defendants’ a=ssets, expedited digcovery, and other

ecuitable relief, is in the public interest;
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S. .On February 10, 2003, SFC and SNFC filed voluntary‘
petitions for relief under the reorganization provisions of
Chaéter,ll of the Bankruptcy Code iﬁ the United States Bankruptcy
Courty Middle Distfict of Georgia, Case Nos. 03—30277 (RFH) and
03-30278 (RFH), respectively. On February 27, 2003, D & E filed
a voluntary petition for relief undex the :eorganizaticn
provisions of Chapter'll of the Bankxuptcy Code in the same
cburt, Case No, 03-30398 (RFH). On Septémber g, 2003, the
Bankruptcy Court appointed S. Gregory Hays as Chapter 11 Trustee
(the “Trustee”) for the debtor defendants inm the three bankruptcy
cases named above. Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 362(b) (¢4), the
commencement and continuation of this action by the FTC against
SFC, SNFC, and D & E, including the enforcement of a Judgment
other than a money judgment, is not stayved by 11 U.S.C. § 382(a).

| 6. No security is required of any ageﬁcy cf the United

States for issuance of a restraining order. Fed. R. Civ. P,

65 () ;: and
7. This temporary restraining order is in. the public
interest.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED AS FOLLOWS:

DEFINITIONS
I. For the purposes of this Order, the following definiﬁions
shall apply: ;
A. “pDefendants”’ means Stewart Finance Company Holdings,

Page 4 of 27
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Tne. (“SFPC Holdings”); Stewart Finance Company, Inc. (“SFC");
arewart National Finance Company, Inc. {ZGNFC”) ; Stewart Finance
Company of Louisiana, Inc. (“SFC La”); Stewart Finance Company of
Missouri, Inc. (™SFC MO”); Stewart Finance Company of Illinois,
Inc. ("SFC IL”); Stewart Finance Compamy of Tennessee, Inc.
(“SFC TN”); John Ben Stewaxt, Jr. (“Ben Stewart”); D & E
Acﬁuisitions, Inc; ("D & E"); Preferred Choice Auto Club, Inc.
(“Preferred Choice Autc Club”); Stewart Insuxance Ltd. . (*Stewart
Tnsurance”); and J & J Insurance, Ltd. (*J & J Insurance”).

1. “Debtor defendants",meahs SFC, SNFC,_and D & E, by
and through the Trustee.

2. “Non-debtor defendants” means any other defendant
not designéted as a debtor defendant, including Ben Stewaft,ASFC
Holdings, SFC La, SFC MO, SFC IL, SFC TN, Preferred Choice Auto
Club, Stewart Insurance, and J & J Insurance.

B. “Document (s)” or “récord(s)” means

1. The original or a true copy of any written, typed,
printed, electronically stoxed, transoribed, taped, recorded,
filmed, punched, or graphic matter or other data compilationg of

- any kind, including, but not limited to, letters, e-mail or other
correspondence, messages, memoranda, interoffice commnications,
notes, reports, summaries, manuals, magnetic tapes or discs,
tabulations, books, :eCords, checks, invoices, work papers, ;

journals, ledgers, statements, returns, XYeports, schedules, or
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files; and

2. Any information stored em any desktop perscnal
computer (“PC”) and wérkstations, lgptcps, notebooks, and othgr
portable computers, whether assigned to individuals or in pools
of computers available for shared use; and home computers used
for work-related purposes; backup disks and tapes, archive disks
and tapes, and other forms of offline storage, whether stored
onsite with the computer used to generate them, stored offsite in
another company facility or stored offsite by a third—party) such
as in a disaster recovery center; and computexs and related
offline storage used by Defendants’ participating associates,
which may include persons who are not employvees of the company or
who do not work on company premises.

C. “Assets” means any legal or equitable interest im,
right to, or claim to, any. real and personal property, including
but not limited to.chattel, goods, instruments, equipment,
fixtures, general intangibles, =ffects, leaseholds, mail or other
deliveries, inventory, checks, notes, accounts, credits,
receivables, funds, moniles, and all éash, wherever located.

D. vPinancial institution” means any bank, savings and
loan institution, credit union, or any financial depository of
anj kind, including but not limited to any brokerage house, -
trustee, broker-dealer, escrow agent, title company, commodity

trading company, or precious metal dealer.

Page & of 27
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E. The “Greene County order” shall mean the order entered
on September 10, 2003 in the Superior Court of Greene County in

the State of Georgia in the case Georaia ex rel. Cox v. Stnwart

et~al.,bcivil Action 03-CV-448, styled “Consent Oxder Granting
Preliminary Injunction with Asset Freeze, Order for Expedited
Discovery, Order Appointing Auditor and Granting Furthexr
Equitable Relief.

F. The “Greene County case defendants” are John Benjamin
Stewart, Jr., Unicn Hoslery, Inc., Stewart Cash Adwvance, Inc.,
PineWcod Hunting, Inc., Stewart & Lawrence Insﬁrance Agencf of
Georgia, Inc., Preferred Choi¢e Auto Club, Inc., The Pbint Rental
Puxrchase, Inc.{ Stewart Family Investments, LP, SBtewart
Insurance,_Ltd., J & J Reinsurance, Ltd., and Stewart Mortgage
Company, Inc. | |

ORDER PROHIBITING CERTAIN BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
II. IT.IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendants and their officers,
agents, servants, employees,land attorneys, and those persons in
active concert or participation with Defendants who receive
actual notice of this Order by personal service.oi otherwise, ang
ecach of them, are hereby restrained and enjoined f£rom:

A. Violating Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.

§ 45 (a), including but not limited to:
1. failiné to disclose or to disclose adequately -

additional terms pertaining to the extension of credit, such as:

Y
fl
)
o
~]
O
Fh
B
~1
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(a) ﬁhat the gquoted monthly payment amount includes premiums for
AD & D and/or Car Club at a cost that is added to the loan
amount, and the amount of those costs; (b) that the entire cost
of the premiums for AD & D and Car Club is to be paid up front
and financed with the loan, znd the consumer will pay additional
interest charges as a result; and (¢) that the purchase of AD & D
and Cax Club is optlonal on the part of the consumer and not
required to obtain the loan; ,

2; failing to discleose or to disclose adequately that:
(2) a new Car Club membership will provide‘no additional benefit
to donsumers who have already purchased a Car Club membership
from defendants that is in effept at the same time as the new Car
Clﬁb membership; (b) AD & D will'provide no benefit to consumers
who are ineligible for the product because of age restrictions
under the terms of the applicable insurance policy; and (c) a new
AD & D policy‘wili provide no addiﬁional benefit to consumers
who have already purchased from defendants the maximum amount of
coverage allowable under the terms of the applicable insurance
policy;

3. soliciting consumers to borrow a specific amouﬁt of
money (i.e. through “cash available” solicitations) without
providing consumers with the option to borrow only the amount

stated in the solicitatien (plus mandatory credit costs) or

without first presenting the consumer with a document comparing
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thé cost of & new loan in the amount of the solicitation versus
the cost of é renewal loan; and

4, representing to ccensumers, in cqnnéction with
extensions of credit, expressly or by implication, thét the
direct deposit program is a free service when, in truth and in

fact, the comsumers who participate in Stewart Finance’s direct

| deposit program must pay a monthly fee and often must pay the

cost of using an ATM to withdraw funds from the account into
which thelr income payments have been deposgited,

B. Violating Sections 106, 107, and 128 of the TILA, 15
U.8.C. 8§ 1605, 1606, and 1638, and Sections 226.4, |
226.18(b), (d), and(e), and 226.22 of Regulaticn Z, 12 C.F.R.
5§ 226.4, 226.18(b),(d), and (e), end 226.22, including but not
limited to:

1. requiring consumers to purchase.AD & D and/or Car
Club in commecticon with an exéension of cloged-end consumer

credit, while also fziling to include the cogt of such ancillary

. products in the finance charge and annual percentage rate

disclosed to those consumers; and
2. wrongfully including the cost of such ancillary
producte in the amount financed disclo=zed to those consumers.
c. Misrepresenting, directly or by implicatiom, any
person’s eligibility for credit insurance and/or ancillary .

products including, but not limited to, AD&D and Car Club;
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D. Misrepresenting, directly or by implication, that any
person will benefit from concurrent AD&D coverages and/or
multiple Car Club memberships; and

E. Denying any person the extension of credit based solely
upon their election not to purchase ancillary products or
insurance, such ag AD & D and Caf Club.

F. This Oxrder shall not be deemed violated if this Court
finds that the Trustee has used best efforts to effect the debtor
defendanté'_compliance with the‘réstrictions set forth in
Subparagraphs A through E of Paragraph II.

 ASSET FREEZE
III, IT IS FURTHER ORDERED ﬁhat, except as identified in
Subparagraphs E and F of this Parégraph III, non-debtor
Defendants and their éfficers, agenﬁs,kservants, employees,
attormeys, and all persons or entities directly or ihdirectly
under the contrél of any of them, including any.financialb
ingtitution, and all other persons or entities acting in concert
or parxticipation with any of them who are served with a copy of
this Oxrder by personal gervice, facgimile, ox otherwise, are
hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from directly or
indirectly:

A. Selling,tliquidating, assigning, transferring,
converting, loaning, encumbering, pledging,lconcealing,

dissipating, spending, withdrawing, or otherwise disposing of any

Page 10 of 27
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fﬁnds, raal or personal propexrty, o other assets or any interest
therein, ﬁhérever,located, including_any asséts outside the
territorial United States, which are:

| 1. in the actual ox constructive posgession of any
non-debtor Defendant; or‘

2. owned or controlled by, or held, in whole or in
part for the benefit of, or subject to access by, or belong to,
any non-debtor Defendant; or

3. dim the actual or constructive possession of, or

owned or controlled by, or subject to access by, or belong to,

any corporation, partnership, trust or other entity directly orxr

indirectly under the contreol of non-debtor Defendants, excluding

the debtor Defendants.

B. Opening or causing to be opened any existing oxr new
safe deposit boxes titled in the name of any‘non—debtor
Defendant, or sﬁbject to access by any non-~debtor Defendant.

c. Incurring charges on any credit card issued in the
name, siﬁgly or jointly, of any non-debtor Defendant.

D. Transferring any funds or other assets subject to-this
Order for attormeys’ fees, ordinary and reasonable expenses
necessary to preserve the non-debtor Defendants’ assets (i.e. .
maging mortgage péyments) except from accounts or other assets
jdentified by prior written notice to the FTC and prior appréval

by the Court; provided that no such expenditures ahall be paid
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from funds or other asgsets subj ect‘to this Order until the
financial statements required by Paragraph V axe prov1ded to
counsel for the FTC.

BE. Notwithstanding the above, non-debtor Defendant John
Benjamin Stewart, Jr. may pay from Farmers & Merchants Bank
account number_, in the name of RBen and Janice Stewart,
reasonable, usual, ordinary, and necessary living expenses and
attorney’s fees, not to exceed $10,000, prior to the submission
of the financial statements required by Paragraph V.

F. The following bank accounts shall remain free of the
asset freeze provisions of this Order but subject to all the
limitations specified in tﬁé Greene County order, attached hereto
as Attachment D, and shall only be used for reascnable and

ordinary business expenses:
1. At Farmers & ﬁérchants Bank:
Preferred Choice Auto Club, Inc,
Pinewood Hunting, Inc.
Stewart Insurance Ltd.

J & J Reinsurance, Ltd,.

JBS Management, Inc.

Stewart & Lawrence Ins. Agency of GA

2. At Bank of America:
Stewart Cash Advance, Inc. _

Page 12 of 27
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Stewart Cash Advance-Aiken
Stewart Cash Adﬁance~0rangeburg
Stewart Cash Advance-Wegt Columbis
Stewart Cash Advance-Camden

3. At Farmers Bank:
Stewart Inéprancey&vRealty
Union Hosiery, Inc.

4. At Citizens Union Bank:
Stewart Iﬁsurance & Realty .
Sibley Avenue Enterprises

5. At Branch Banking & Trust
Sibley Avenue Enterpriées
The Peint Rental

6. At SunTrust Bank:
The Point Rental

Pinewcod Hunting, Inc.

a. Thevfunds, property and assets affécted by.this
Paragraph IITI shall include both existing assets and assets
acquired after the effective date of this Drder, including
wiéhout limitation, those acgquired by loan or gift. Non-debtor
Defendantslshall hold 2ll assets, including without limitation,
payments, loans, and gifts, received aftex éervice of this Order.

H. The financial account numbers enume;ated above ghHall be

Dage 13 of 27
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" redacted from any copies of this Order filed;publicly with the

Clérk of this Court. ?urthermore, tﬂe parties shall not
distribute a copy of the non-redacted vérsion»of this Order
except to financial institutions. a

T. The auditor, Russel J. Lipford, Jr., CPA of the firm
Clifton, Lipford, Hardisom & Parker, LLP, CPA’s of 1020 Riverside
Drive, Macon, Georgia, 31202, who was appointed iﬁ th¢ Greene
County order, shall submit to the FTC all reports preparéd in
connection with the Greene County order; including but not
vlimited to, all reports of the assets,_liabilities( income and
expenses of the Greene County Defendants.

J . The relief specified in this Order is suppleméntary to
the relief set forth in the Greene County order. This Order does
not conflict with or supersede the Greene County order. If the
CGreene County order should be vacated, voided, or othefﬁise
rendered ineffectual, thié order shall remain in full fﬁrcé and
effect, subject to the provisions of Paragraph XIII.

K. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the
funds,.property and assets affected by thisz Pardgraph III shall
exclude the property of the debtor Defendants’ respective
bankruptcy estates as defined by 11 U.S.C. § 541 (a).

RETENTION CF ASSETS AND DOCUMENTS BY THIRD PARTIES

IV. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending determination of the

Page 14 of 27
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FTC;E request for a p:eliﬁinary injunction, any financial
institution, or any person or other entity served with a copy of
this Order, inclﬁdingnﬁut noﬁ limited to, smith Filing; Stewart
Family Investments, LLC; JBé Prcperties, LLC; Pinewood Hunting,
Inc.; Pinewood, LLC; Union Hosiery, Inc.; Sibley Avenue
Enterprises, Inc.; Stewart & Lawrence Insurance Agency of
Georgia; The Point Rental shall:

AL Hold and retain within such entity's or person's
control,‘and prohibip the withdrawal, removal, assignment,
transfer, pledge, hypothecation, encumbrance, disbursement,
dissipation, conversion, sala, liquidation, oxr other &isposal of
any funds, documents, propérty, or other assets held by or undex
such entity's-or person's control:

1. on behalf of, or for the benefit of, any non-
debtor Defendant or other party subject to Paragraph III above;v

2. in ény'account maintained in the name of, or
subjéct to withdrawal by, any non-debtor Defendant or othei party
subject to Paragraph III above;

3. that are subject to access or use by, or under the
signatory power of, any non-debtor Defendant or other partf
subject to Paragraph III above;

B, Deny access to any safe deposit boxes that are either:
1. titled in the name, individually or Jjoimtly, éé

any non-debtor Defendant or other party subject to Paragraph III
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above; ox
2. subject to access by non-debtor Defendant or other
party subject to Paragraph III above.

C. Provide to counsel for the FIC, within three (3) days,
a statement settiné forth, |

1. the identification of each account or asset titled
in the name, individually or'jointly, or held on behalf of, or
for the benefit of, any non-debtor Defendant or other party
subject to Paragraph IIT above, whethexr in.whoie-or inn part;

2. the balance of each such account, or a description
of the nature and valﬁe of such asset;

3. the identification of any safe deposit box that is
.either titled in the name of, individually or jeintly, 6: is
otherwise subject to‘access or control by, any non-debtor
Défendant or othexr party subject to Pé:agraph III above, whether
in whole or in part; and

4. if the account, safe deposit box, or other asset
has been closed or removed, the date closed or remoﬁed and the
balance on said date.

b. The accounts subject to this Paragraph IV include
existing assets and assets deposited after the effective date of
this Order. This Paragraph IV shall not prohibit transfers in
accordance with any provision of this Order, or any further order

of the Court.
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| E. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraiy, the
accounts subject to this Paragraph IV shall exclude the'ﬁrbperty
of the debtdr Lefendants’ fespactivé bankruptcy estates as
defined by 11 U.S.C. § 54l(a).

F. The FTIC is grantedkleave, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P,
45, to subpoena documents immediately from any such financial
institution, account custodian, or other entity concerming the
nature, location, status, and extent of non-debtor Defendants”
assets, aﬁd compliance with this Order, and such financial
institution, account custodian oxr other entity shall respond to
such subpoena within five business days after sexrvice.

. | FINAﬁCIAL STATEMENTS
V. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that at least (3) three days prior to
the préliminary injunction hearing in this matter, and in no -
event later than ten calendar days after entry of this order,
each non-debtor Defendant shall provide counsel for the FTC:

A. A com@leted.financial statement accurate ag of the date
of service of this Order updn such Defendant (individual
Defendants shall include all financial information as requested:
in the Department of Treasury — Intermal Revenue Sexvice
Collection Information Statement for Individuals (Form 433-3)
attached to this Order as Attachment A and also locatad at

|

<http://www.irs.gov/pub/ira-pdf/€433a.pdf>; corporate Defendants

ghall include all financial informatiom as requested in the
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corresponding Collection Information Statement for Businesses
(Form 433 - B) attached to this OVder ag Attachment B and also

located at <http: //www irs. qov/pubjlrs ndf/£433b.pdE>) ;

B. A completed statement, verified under oath, of all
paymenta,’transfers,'or assignment of funds, agsets, or propexty
worth $1,000 or meore since January 1, 2003. Such statement shall
include (2) the amount_transferred or asgsigned; (b) the name of
each transferee cr,aésignee; (c) the date of the assigmment ox
transfer; (d) the type and amount of comsideration paid the
Defendant. Each statement ghall specify thé name and address of
"each financial institution and brokerage firm at which the
Defendant'haé accounté or séfe depcsit hoxes. Baid statements
shall include assetsvheld’in foreign as well as domestic
accounta; and

C. A full accountiné of all assets, accounts or documents
outgide of the territery of the United States which are held
either: (1) by Defendants; {(2) for their benefit; (3) in trust.
by or for them, individually or jointly; or (4) under their
direct or indirect control, individually or jointly.

| REPATRIATION OF FOREIGN ASSETS
VI. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, within five business days
followihg the sérvice of thig Order, non-debtor DFfendants shall:

A. Transfer to the territory of the United States all’

assgsets, accounts or documents in foreign countries held either

Dage 18 of 27
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(1) by non-debtor Defendants; (2) for the benefit of non-debtor
Defendants; (3) in trust by or for non-debtoxr Defendants,
individually or jeintly; or (4) undér nén—debtor Defeﬁdants’
di?ect or indirect control, individually or jointly;

B. Hold and retain all repatriated asseté, accounts oxr
documents and prevent any transfer, disposition, or dissipation
whatgoever of any such assets or documents except as allowed by
Paragraph III of this Order; and

C. Provide the FTIC accezs to noh-debtor>Defendants'

. records and documents held by financial institutions outside the

territorial United States, by signing the Consent to Release of
Financial Records attached to this Order as.Attachmegt C.

D. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the
repatriated assets, accounts and documents subject to this
Paragraph VI shall exclude the property of the débtor Defendants’
respective bankruptcy estates as defined by 11 U.S.C. § 541(a).

NONINTERFERENCE WITH REPATRIATION
VII. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants are hereby temporarily
restrained and enjoined from taking any acticn,~direct1y or
indirectly, which may result in the encumbrance or dissipation of
foreign assets, or in the hindrance of the repatriation required
by the preceding Section of this Order, including, but not
; .

limited to:

A, Sending any statement, letter, fax, email or wire
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transmizsion, or telephoning 6r engaging iﬁ any other act,
directly or.indirectly, that results in a determination by a
foreign trustee oX other entity that a2 “duress” event has
occurred under the terms of é foreign trust agreement until such
time that all assets have been fully‘repatriated pursuant to
Paragraph VI of this Oxder;

B. Notifying any trustee, prctectdr or other agent of any
foreign trust or other related entities of either the existence
of this Oider, or of the fact that repatriation is required
pursuant to a court 6rder, until such time'thaﬁ all assets have
been fully repatriated pursuant to Parégraph Vi of this Order.

C. Provigions af Pafagraph VII do not apply to the Trustee
in the exercise of his duties undexr the Bankruptcy Code.

| BEXPEDITED DISCOVEéI
VIII. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, notwithstanding the
piovisions of Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 26(d) and (£} and
30(a) (2) (€), and Local Rule 26.1, and pursuant to Federal Rules
Of.CiVil Procedure 30 (a), 24, and 45:

A. Plaintiff and non-debtor Defendants are granted leave,
at any time after service of this Order, to take thé deposgition,
on three (3) days’ notice, of any person, whether or not a party,
for the purpose of discovering gl) the nature, location, status,

ard extent of assetzs of Defendants, or of their affiliates or

subsidiaries; (2) the nature and location of documents reflecting
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thé business tranmactions of Defendants, oxr their affiliates or
subsidiaries; (3) the épplicability of any evidentiary privileges
to this action; ox (45'any other matter that is relevant to the
igsue of whether a preliminary injunction should issué in this
zction. The limitations'and conditions set forth in Fed. R. Ciwv.
P. 30(a) (2) (B) and 31(a) (2) (B) regarding subsequent depositiomns
of an individual =shall not apply to depositions taken pursuant to
this Section. Any such depositions taken pursuént to this Sectiom
sh%ll not be counted toward the ten-deposition limit set forth in
Fed. R. Civ. P. 30(a) (2) (A) and 31(a) (2) (A). Service of discovery
upon a party, taken pursuant to this Section VI, shall be
sufficient if made py'facsimile or by overnight delivery; and

B. Plaintiff and non-debtor Defendants are granﬁed 1eéve,
at any time after service of this Order, to demand the production
of documents, on five (5) days' notice, from any person, whether
or not a party, relating to (1) the nature, status, or extent of
Defendants' assets, or of their affiliates ox subsidiarxies; (2)
the location of documents reflectihg the business transactions of

Defendants, or of their affiliates or subsidiaries; (3) the

‘applicability of any evidentiary privileges to this action; or

(4) any othexr mattexr that is relevant to the issue of whether a

preliminary injunction should issue in this action, provided that
. ‘ N

forty-eight (48) hours’ notice shall be deemed sufficient for the

production of any such documents that are maintained or storsd
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only as electronic data.
C. The debtor Defendants shall provide the following to
the FTC within five days of fhe FTC;é request,

1. A complete update to the elecﬁronic data the
debtor Defendant previcusly submitted, for the time period
December 1, 2002 to the present, in the same form as was provided
previously in December of 2002;

2. The chart of accounts (identified as Davis Exhibit
2 in the Fule 2004 deposition of Alan Davis) and any updates to
such exhibit. |

| D. Tn addition, the Trustee shall use bésf efforts to
comply with the FTC’s reasonable request for further information
within five days of such regquest.

RECORD KEEFING PROVISIONS

Iﬁ. TT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants, and those perscps in
active concert ér participation wifh them who receive adctual
notice of this brder by perscnal service, facsimile, or
otherwise, are hereby enjoined f£xrom:

A Destroying, erasing, mutilating, concealing, altering,
transferring or otherwise disposing of, in any manner, directly
or indirectly, contracts, agreements, customer files, customer
lists, customer addresses and telephone numbers,'correspondence, ‘
advertigements, brochures, sales material, training material;

sales presentations, documents evidencing or referring to
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Defendants’ products, data, computer tapes, disks, or other
cdmputerized records, books, written or printed records,
handwritten notes, telephone.logs, “verification" or “compliance”
tapes or other audioc or video tape recordings, receipt books,
ipvoices, postal receipts, ledgers, personal'and business
canceled checks and check registers, hank stétements, appointment
books, copies of fedexal, state or local business or personal
income or property tax returns, and other documents or records of
-any kind,'inciuding electronically—Stored»materia;s, that relate
to the business praCticesbor business or persocnal finances of
Defendants or other entity directly or indirectly ﬁndex the
control of Defendents; and
T B Failing to create and maintain bocks, records, and
accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately, fairly, and
completely reflect the incomes, assets, disbursements,
transactions and use of monies by Defendants or othex entity
directly or indirectly under the control of Defendants.

NOTICE 'TO EMPLOYEES |
X. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that non-debtor Defemdants shall
immediately provide a copy of this Order to each of their }
corporaticons, subsidiaries, affiliates, and participating
agsociates. Within ten (10) calendar days following service of

'

this Order by the FTC, the non-debtor Defendants shall provide

the FTC with an affidavit identifying the names, titles,
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addresses, and telephone numbers of the personé and entities that
Defendants have served with a copy of this Order in compliance
with this prbvision. Also, Qithin één (10) calendar days, the
Trustee shall (1) mail a summary of Paragrapﬁ IT of this Order,
which will be provided by the FTC, to all employees of the debtor
Defendants, (2) provide to the FTIC a list of employees to whow

the summary was mailed, and (3) personally certify to the FTC the

date such notice was mailed.

CONSUMER REPORTS
~XI. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that pursuant to Section 604(1) of the
Fair Credit Reporting Act,.is U.5.C. § 1681b(l), any consumer
reporting agency may furnish a consumer  report cencerning any
Deféndant to the FTC.

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE
XIT. IT IS5 FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. BP. 65(b),
that Defendants shall appear on the 22 day of ;¥Q£Zgléﬁ 2003,
at_12&27égnh at the United States Courthouse, 75 Spring Street,
SW, Atlanta, GA 20303, to show cauée, if any there be, why this
Court should not enter a preliminary injunction, pending final
ruling on the complaint, against Defendants enjoining them from
further viclations of the FIC Act and the TILA, FDCPA, Credit
Practices Rule, continuing the freeze of non-debtor Deferidants’

assets, and imposing such additional relief as may be

Page 24 of 27



09/15/03 12:17 FAX 404 858 1379 -

_ATLANTA FIC,

B T U T L WY SSEWPRLIE T LA AR AR L L IR LR
B R e A AR S T TR el

appropriate.
EXFPIRATION OF THLS ORDER
X1I11. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED t%zitzaj/Temporary Restrai%ing

Order granted herein shall expire =n %éizzéégs*léiaéédzf:f*ﬁﬂﬂgj'

at 11:59 p.m., unless within such time the Order, for good cause

shown, is extended, or unless, as to any Defendant, the Defendant

congents that it should be extended for a longer period of time.
SERVICE OF PLEADINGS; EVIDENCE, WITﬁESS LISTS‘

XI&. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that

A, Defendants shall file any answering éffidavits,
pleadings, or legal memoranda with the Court.and serve the same
on counsel for the FTC no later than.j&%ﬁ@gé;r’lqz , 2003.

B. The question of whether this Court should enter a
preliminary injunction pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure enjoining the Defendants during the pendency
of this action shall be resoclved 5n the pleadings, declérations,
exhibits, and memoranda filed by and oral argument of the
parties. Live testimony shall be heard only on further order of
this Courtqon'motion filed with the Court and served on couusel

for the other parties no later than _E?@kymé;&/ /22 , 2003.

Such motion shall set forth the name, address, and telephone

number of each proposed witness, a detailed summary or affidavit
i
revealing the substance of each proposed witness’ expected

testimony, and an explanation of why the taking of live testimony
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‘would be helpful to this Court. Any papers opposing a timely
motion to present llve testlmony or to present live testimony in
response to live testimony to be presented by another party shall
be filed with this Court and served on the other parties no later
thanwgyﬁ%ggégéngOOB. Provided that service shall be performed
by personal or overnight delivery or by facsimile, and documents
shall be delivere& so that they shall be received by the other
parties no later than 4 p.m. (EDT) on the appropriate dates
listed in this sub-section. |
CORRESPONDENCE WITH PLAINTIFF

XV, For the purposes of this Order, all service on and
correspondence to the FTIC eﬁall be addressed to: Monica E. Vaca,
Esq., Federal Trade Commission, 601 New Jersey Avenue, NW, NJ-
3158, Washington, DC 20580. Telephone: (2~Q2) 326-2245;
Facgimile: (202) 326-3768.

| SERVICH OF THIS ORDER
XVI. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that copies of this Order may be
served by facsimile transmission, perscnal or overnight delivery,
or U.S. Mail, by agents and employees of the FTC or any state or
federal law enforcement agency or by private procesé server, on
(1) Defendants, (2) any financial institution, entity or perscn
‘ that holds, controls, or maintains custody of any account or
~apset of any Defendant, or has held, controlled or maintaineé

custody of any account or asget of any Defendant, or (3) any

Page 26 of 27



14,10 DAA 4U4& DOD La(Y ALLANTA PFIC

3 S se et esed e o . . R T T ILR R R NPt e AR -Q LS e "
R PRI T A g T e T PR Y N G I R . W et Y L e TR g B et T R N

other person or entity that may be subject to any‘provision of
this Order.

RETENTION OF JURISDICTION
XVII. T T FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain

jurisdiction of this matter for all purposes.

I IS 20 ORDERED, this /glday of September, 2003, at _.m.

4——, /S~ /’,,'@D ZLX

T onorable Jack #&. Camp
TED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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